ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 27, 2012
3:47 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representative Craig Johnson, Vice Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representative Bob M1l er

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 259
"An Act establishing procedures and guidelines for auditing
pharmacy records; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 300

"An Act relating to geographic cost-of-living salary adjustnents
for justices of the supreme court and judges of the superior and
district courts; and providing for an effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 259

SHORT TI TLE: PHARMACY AUDI TS
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) MJNOZ, P. W LSON

01/ 17/ 12 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/13/12

01/ 17/ 12 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 17/ 12 (H L&C, FIN

02/ 27/ 12 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE CATHY MJUNOZ

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- February 27, 2012



Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as a joint prime sponsor of HB
259.

CHRI STOPHER CLARK, Staff

Representati ve Cathy Minoz

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 259.

REPRESENTATI VE PEGGY W LSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as a joint prime sponsor of HB
259.

BARRY CHRI STENSEN, Phar maci st

| sl and Phar macy;

Legi slative Commttee Co-Chair

Al aska Pharmaci sts Associ ati on

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 259.

MATTHEW DI LORETO, Director

State Government Affairs

Nat i onal Conmuni ty Pharmaci sts Associ ati on ( NCPA)

Al exandria, Virginia

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 259.

TOM HODEL, Phar maci st

Sol dot na Prof essi onal Phar macy

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 259.

ERI C DOUGAS, Director, Governnment Affairs

CVS Caremark

Chicago, Illinois

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 259.

GERALD BROWN, | ndependent Pharmaci st

Prescription Center Pharnmacy

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 259.

MARGARET SODEN, Past President
Al aska Pharmaci sts Associ ati on (APA)

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- February 27, 2012



Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 259.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:47:40 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Committee neeting to order at 3:47 p.m Represent ati ves
Thonmpson, Ml ler, Saddler, and O son were present at the call to

or der. Representatives Johnson and Chenault arrived as the
nmeeti ng was in progress.

HB 259- PHARVACY AUDI TS

3:47: 59 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 259, "An Act establishing procedures and
guidelines for auditing pharmacy records; and providing for an
effective date.”

3:48:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CATHY MUNQZ, Al aska State Legislature, introduced
hersel f.

The commttee took a brief at-ease.
3:49: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ expl ai ned that HB 259 is about establishing
common courtesy guidelines for pharmacy audits and was requested
by the Al aska Pharnaci sts Association (APA). She related sone
maj or conponents of the bill. This bill would give pharnmacists
time to prepare for an audit and adequate notice of one. It
woul d al so prevent pharmacists from being accused of fraud when
they commt a snmall clerical, recordkeeping, or typographical
error. She related a scenario in which a pharnmacist had filled
a 30-day prescription and due to a clerical error, the client
received a 31-day prescription. When the pharmacy was audited,
the pharnaci st was denied reinbursenent for the entire
prescription due to the clerical error. She characterized the
process as an unfair process. This bill would also prevent
extrapolation, with is a nethod of projecting the cost of one
m st ake over several cases or extrapolating over a tinespan.
She offered an exanple, such that if a pharmacist filled a

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- February 27, 2012



prescription which resulted in a $.25 error, the audit could add
a $.25 on each prescription filled. She indicated that this
recently happened to an Al askan pharmaci st, who was given a bil
of over $7,000. She said HB 259 would also ban the practice of
auditors receiving conpensation based on a percentage of what
they recover from pharmacists. She offered her belief that this
is just wong since paynents should not be driven by audit
recovery costs, but should be based on facts.

REPRESENTATI VE MJUNQZ acknow edged that pharmacists understand
the inportance of audits, but sonmetinmes audits nmay be
unreasonable and are used in a manner that deprives pharnmacists
of fair reinbursement for their services. At tinmes, a
phar maci st may prescribe the right drug and dose, but perhaps a
clerical error in billing transpired. In those instances the
pharmaci st will not receive paynent for the prescription. She
related that HB 259 is ainmed at protecting the public from
pot enti al abuse while assuring phar maci st s face fair,
reasonabl e, and consistent audits. The measure is supported by
the APA, the National Community Pharmacists Association (NCPA)
and the National Association of Chain Drug Stores (NACDS).

3:53:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  P. W LSON, Al aska State Legislature, sai d
auditors have shown gross abuse in conducting audits and have
been paid by a percentage of the insurance reinbursenent.
Therefore, they are nitpicking to the extreme and extrapol ate
anounts to fill their own pockets, which sinply nust stop. She
characterized auditors' practices as bordering on unethical.
She referred to nenbers' packets, to the APA, which includes
exanpl es of abuses and noted some pharnmacists will testify.

CHAIR OLSON remarked problenms are occurring throughout the
i ndustry.

3:56: 01 PM

CHRI STOPHER CLARK, Staff, Representative Cathy Minoz, Al aska
State Legislature, explained that HB 259 consists of four
sections. Section 1 would outline the intent of the bill to
hel p the public understand the purpose of the bill, which is to
set standards for pharmacy audits. He pointed out his analysis
of the auditor qualifications are in error in the sectional
analysis for Section 2. This bill attenpts to establish
courtesy and flexibility during the audit, such as avoiding
scheduling an audit when the pharnmacists are unusually busy -

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- February 27, 2012



the first of the nonth or during a special event - yet stil

allow an audit to be conduct ed. He referred to paragraph (9),
whi ch woul d ban the accounting practice of extrapolation, as one
of the nobst inportant aspects of the bill. He suggested

pharmaci sts on line today may better be able to describe the
probl ens they have encountered.

3:58: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked for a definition of a desk audit.

MR. CLARK explained two types of audits: one is a desk audit in
which the auditor requests records and the pharmacist supplies

them the second is an on-site audit is one in which an auditor
enters the pharmacy and asks to see records.

3:59: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER referred to page 2, line 13, to paragraph
(6), which read, "a clerical error, record-keeping error,
typographical error, or scrivener's error may not constitute
fraud." He asked for clarification on "may."

MR. CLARK answered that may not equals shall not according to
the |l egal drafter.

4:00: 17 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked for the genesis of the bill.

MR. CLARK answered that the Al aska Pharmaci sts Associ ati on (APA)

provided the basic I|anguage for the bill. He related his
understanding the provisions were derived fromreviewing laws in
15-20 other states. He offered that the sponsor has held
prelimnary mneetings with sone state agencies, including the
Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS), and the
Departnment of Administration (DOA). He related some concerns
have been expressed, which he suggested represents a good start
on the discourse to provide a system that is fair to
pharmaci sts, yet still wll assure the public that conprom ses
wi |l not happen, in terns of detecting fraud or abuse.

4:01: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER referred to page 2, which read: "(5)
each pharmacy shall be audited using the sanme standards and
paraneters as other simlarly situated pharmacies.” He pointed

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- February 27, 2012



out that a variety of types of retail establishnents exist in
Al aska and asked how t hese busi nesses are affected.

MR. CLARK deferred to the pharnmacists on-line today. He
suggested that pharmacists in Anchorage are affected in a manner
that is likely simlar to ones in Eagle R ver. He related his

understanding that costs would be different for sonme areas, such
as costs in Nome as conpared to ones in Eagle River.

4:02: 05 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked who will pay for the audits.

MR. CLARK deferred to the pharnacists to nore fully respond. He
related his understanding that the costs are paid for, in part,
from the pharmacists and by the entity that hires the auditor
for legitimate purposes to ensure no cases of fraud or abuse
exi st .

4:02:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noted that the finding of an audit nmnust
be based on the actual overpaynent or under paynent. He
expressed concern that the |anguage may encourage nore audits
and nore tine in the audits. He understood the pitfall in being
subjected to extrapolation, but he also understood the auditor
woul d not go through every piece of paper.

MR. CLARK agreed the sponsor would want to avoid being subjected
any uni ntended consequences under the bill. He suggested that
t he pharmaci sts may be able to address this issue.

4:04:17 PM

BARRY CHRI STENSEN, Pharnmacist, Island Pharmacy; Legislative
Comm ttee Co-Chair, Al aska Pharmaci sts Association (APA), stated
that the association represents pharnacists, pharmacies, and
pharmacy technicians in Al aska. He related that APA nenbers
work hard in retail pharmacies, hospitals, nursing honmes, and

nmedical clinic settings throughout the state. He asked for
menbers' support for HB 259, to help create a level playing
field for pharmacists when dealing with pharmacy audits. He

remarked that the APA has made this the organization' s nunber
one legislative priority. The APA supports the need for audits
to ensure that fraud, waste, and abuse activities are checked,
however, the audits nust be conducted in a fair and bal anced
manner, allow for a fair appeal process, and paynent for all

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- February 27, 2012



services performed wthin the patients' i nsurance benefit
structure. He related that pharmacists are online to describe
their experience with audits. He briefly outlined the typical
prescription process and how a record is created. He referred
to a handout in nenbers' packets titled, "US. Comrercial
Phar maceuti cal Supply Chain: How does it Work?" He said
pharmaci sts generally contract wth pharmacy benefit managers
(PBM and in turn the PBM sends back authorization for paynent
in order to fill and bill prescriptions for consuners as part of
their health benefit plan. He explained that currently nearly
all prescriptions are filled electronically in real tine. The
pharmmacy sends prescription information to the PBM and in turn
the PBM returns authorization for paynment and other clinical
edits for concern, including high dose, drug interactions, or
ot her pertinent infornation. The pharmacy is reinbursed the
cost of the nedication plus a dispensing fee for covering the
pharmacy's cost of doing business. He clarified that typically
the PBM or the entity contracted by the PBM will perform audits
on contracted pharmacies to legitimately protect against fraud
and abuse.

4:07:46 PM

MR. CHRISTENSEN said it has been suggested that pharnacies
should be able to address auditing concerns directly with the
contracted PBM He said, "I wish it were this easy." Most
Al aska pharnaci sts have never been able to alter the terns of a
contract given to them except perhaps to nodify dispensing fees.
He characterized the process as a "take it or leave it" offer.
He stated that this leads to the reason the pharmacists are
asking for standardization in auditing practices, which would be
applicable to all plans and pharmacies in the state.

MR. CHRI STENSEN recalled an earlier question about how pharmacy

audits are paid. He offered that wusually the PBM has an
auditing departnment or wll contract with another entity to
perform the audit. He suggested that the cost is |ikely borne

by the PBM but the PBM can recoup the cost from pharnacies.
4:08: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked for clarification on who the PBM
wor ks under.

MR. CHRISTENSEN related that the PBM works for the health
insurer and provides services, including contracting with the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- February 27, 2012



pharmacy and drug manufacturers, typically for rebates from
manuf acturers to the PBM and/ or the health insurer.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked for clarification on the chart wth
respect to the dispensing fee.

MR. CHRI STENSEN answered that typically the dispensing fee would
conme back fromthe PBMto the pharmacy, but the cost of the drug
woul d al so be included in the fee.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER inquired as to the typical dispensing
fee.

MR. CHRI STENSEN answered that in Alaska the dispensing fee
varies from $2-$10, depending on the location and the nunber of
prescriptions. In response to a question by Chair d son, he
answered that the dispensing fee is alnost always based on a
dol | ar basis and not a percentage.

4:10: 31 PM

CHAI R OLSON asked for clarification on the current standards for
PBMs.

MR. CHRI STENSEN said he would argue there are not any standards.
He related his understanding that the contracts that pharnacies
sign likely contain provisions on audits and appeal process, but
that overall the process is not standardized. In further
response to Chair O son, he agreed that the fees vary based on
the major nedical carrier, such as Blue Cross, and on the size
of the pharmacy. He reiterated that standards do not exist.

4:11: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON pointed out the bill requires any
under paynents or overpaynents mnust be based on actual paynent
and asked for clarification on the method.

MR. CHRI STENSEN answered that the bill is a work in progress.
He stated that nobst other states' statutes contain a limt on
the nunber of prescriptions that can be audited, which is
currently under consideration.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON expressed concern that as the bill is
currently witten pharmacists may encounter huge admnistrative
hassl es. He suggested that instead of stopping the audit after
finding one mstake, the auditor would continue to |ook for

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- February 27, 2012



other errors, instead of extrapolating. He questioned whet her
any advantage would exist. He reiterated that he envisioned
pharmaci sts would need to spend significantly nore tinme wth
auditors rather than dispensing drugs. He offered his belief
that averages are often used and he suggested the pharnacists
may Wi sh to consider atine limt.

MR. CHRI STENSEN understood the concern. He pointed out one
thing the bill would do is place a tinme limtation on the nunber
of years an auditor can audit, which he thought was a good
provi si on. He offered his belief that pharmacists as a group
are detail oriented so he envisioned the nunber of m stakes

woul d be m ni nal
4:14: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked how pharmacists read doctors
writing.

MR CHRI STENSEN answer ed t hat nost prescriptions are
el ectronically prescribed; although mstakes can still happen
since the prescriber nust still key it in correctly and code the
prescription correctly. He offered his belief that the industry
still faces a conputer chall enge.

4:14:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether any limt exists on how
often pharmacists can be audited. He further asked for an
estimate on the anmount of tinme a pharmacist spends filling

prescriptions and an estimate of the tinme spent on audit-rel ated
activities.

MR. CHRI STENSEN answered that he thought the tine varies. He
agreed that it takes a lot of tine to copy records and while

nost audits are desk audits that it still takes tine to conpile
the record. This bill does not Iimt the number of audits.
4:15: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER further asked if he would hazard a guess
if the anbunt would be 5-10 percent of his time or sone other
per cent age.

MR. CHRI STENSEN answered that pharmacists do not receive audit

requests every day, but auditors may ask for 20-30 prescriptions
at once. He pointed out that pharmacists sinply must fit the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- February 27, 2012



requests into their workl oad. Pharnmacies are busy and tine
spent responding to audits neans less tine spent on other
t hi ngs. In further response to Representative Saddler, he
agreed this adds to the overhead costs.

CHAI R OLSON stated his intention is not to nove the bill today.
4:16:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON cautioned against creating a bureaucracy
or the necessity for pharmacists to designate a specific staff
person to manage auditor requests. He expressed his desire in
assisting pharmacists and to have the bill nove forward. He
asked the pharmacists to address his concerns to ensure proper
public benefits yet still mnimze paperwork pharmacists rmnust
process.

MR. CHRI STENSEN answered that approximately 15-20 states have
had simlar legislation on the books for sone tinme and he has
not heard of any problens they have encountered.

4:18:12 PM

CHAIR OLSON inquired as to whether this bill is nodeled after a
nati onal nodel

MR. CHRI STENSEN responded HB 259 this bill was nodeled after
nodel legislation from the National Communi ty  Pharnmaci sts

Associ ati on.

CHAIR OLSON asked how long the nodel legislation has been in
pl ace.

MR. CHRI STENSEN answered about 5-10 years. In further response
to Chair dson, he stated that the law varies from state to
st at e.

4:18: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER asked for clarification on the auditors'
enpl oyers and how they are engaged. He further asked for brief
overvi ew of how an audit is conduct ed.

CHAI R OLSON nentioned several auditors are online.

4:19:21 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -10- February 27, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE M LLER noted the bill indicates an auditor nmay
not receive percentage of anmpount recover ed. He said he assuned
this is in the bill since sone of this currently happens.

MR. CHRI STENSEN answer ed yes.

REPRESENTATIVE MLLER related that a copy of the audit is
provided to the health benefit plan sponsor affected by the
audi t . He questioned whether the pharmacists, doctors, or
patients al so receive a copy of the audit.

MR. CHRI STENSEN described the process such that the PBM the
auditing entity, would notify the pharnacy. The | anguage | ust
mentioned is intended to notify the health insurer. He referred
to a conpany, such as Envision Rx Options, which is a PBM that
operates for the State of Alaska' s enployees' plan. He
expl ained that under the bill if a pharmacy is audited by that
conpany, the State of Al aska would be notified of the results of
the audit. In further response to Representative MIller, he
answered that the doctor or patient would not be notified.

4:20:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER referred to page 2, line 16, to paragraph
(8), which restricts an auditor from providing information to
anyone other than the person requesting the audit and the
phar macy. He asked whether security of information has been a
pr obl em

MR. CHRI STENSEN responded that this |anguage would protect the
pharmacy from auditors sharing information on which pharnacies
shoul d be audit ed.

4:21:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER related his understanding that Health
| nsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (H PAA)
requires privacy for patients. He inquired as to whether HI PAA
woul d apply.

MR. CHRI STENSEN answered yes, that H PAA would apply to the
patient information, but the specific provision in the bil
woul d apply to the type of error.

4:22:29 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -11- February 27, 2012



REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether this type of problem is
preval ent .

MR. CHRI STENSEN answered no, but that this |anguage addresses
nore of a fear of this type of activity mght occur. In further
response to Representative Saddler, he said he was not aware of
any other laws that would protect the pharmacies from this type
of activity.

4:22:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked who would financially benefit and
who would |ose fromthis bill.

MR. CHRI STENSEN answered wth respect to extrapolation, the
pharmacy is being charged and the PBM entity would get the funds
t he auditor extrapol at ed.

4:23:38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER related his understanding to the extent
that pharnmacies are being "dinged," that the bill would benefit
t he phar naci st s.

MR. CHRI STENSEN answered that the bill would keep pharnmacists
whol e.

4:23:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked for the percentage of the three
types of audits pharmacists incur for desktop, in pharmacy, and
i nvestigative audits.

MR CHRI STENSEN answered that he was not aware of any
docunentation, but from an industry practice the desktop audits
are much nore prevalent for the sinple reason that it is |ess
expensive for the auditor to conduct. Auditors typically would
ask for copies of records rather than travel to Alaska, and
absorbing the auditor's travel costs. He said he assuned it is
| ess expensive to conduct desk audits.

4:24:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON i nquired as to the reasons to investigate
a phar macy.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- February 27, 2012



MR. CHRI STENSEN answered that an investigation would Ilikely
happen after a tipoff. He expl ained since prescription records
are submtted electronically that any irregularity to the PBM or
i nsurance conpany would be visible, such as one pharnmacy
di spensi ng substantial amounts of a type of expensive nedicine
when ot her pharnmacies are not dispensing simlar anpounts.

4:25: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked for an indication of problem with
audits since the nunber of audits conducted is unknown.

MR. CHRI STENSEN suggested that |istening to upcom ng testinony
should illustrate the problens pharnacists have, noting at | east
one pharmacist will indicate it is a big problem He reiterated
that the pharmacists do not have any neans of tracking these
figures since the PBMs in Al aska are not regul at ed.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether it would be hel pful to add
reporting | anguage to the bill.

MR. CHRI STENSEN poi nted out that doing so would likely nean nore
paperwor k for soneone to submt.

4:26:41 PM

CHAIR COLSON related a scenario and asked what would happen
during an audit in the event a couple has two mmjor nedical
policies, with one policy as the primary and the other as the
co-paynent. He asked whether one conpany would notify the other
in case of any di screpanci es.

MR. CHRI STENSEN answered no, not typically. He clarified the
guestion, that if there was a problem with a claim whether an
audi tor who represented the secondary insurance would notify the
primary insurance conpany. He answered that he did not believe
so. He agreed, in response to a remark, that the drug m ght be
expensi ve.

4:27:56 PM

CHAI R OLSON remarked that the industry has no standards in terns
of audits.

MR. CHRI STENSEN enphasi zed that there are an unknown nunber of
PBM conpanies with numerous contracts containing a variety of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -13- February 27, 2012



termns. He said he did not believe any of the contracts require
adhering to the same audit standards.

CHAI R OLSON inquired as to whether any other states hold PBMs to
t he sane standards.

MR. CHRI STENSEN answer ed yes.

CHAI R OLSON suggested using their approach m ght address sone of
t hese issues.

MR. CHRI STENSEN answered yes. He pointed out that his
association has tried to pursue legislation to address the
i ssue, but dropped it due to the substantial opposition.

4:28:58 PM

CHAIR OLSON inquired as to the nunber of states with audit
st andar ds.

MR. CHRI STENSEN answered about 20 states. He suggested that
other testifiers should be able to provide national statistics.

4:29:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether the audit cycle spans a
year. He further asked about simlarly-situated pharnacies.

MR. CHRI STENSEN related his understanding that an audit cycle
woul d cover a set nunber of clains during a set period of tine.
He suggested it may be a request for 50 prescriptions spanning
January to January.

4:30: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether that would that constitute
the cycle or if an auditor would subsequently request additiona
prescriptions.

MR. CHRI STENSEN deferred to the National Conmunity Pharnmacists
Associ ati on, who has assisted other states with these issues.

4:30:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked how many classes of pharmacies in
Al aska woul d be considered simlarly situated.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -14- February 27, 2012



MR. CHRI STENSEN answered that sone pharmacists specialize in
conmpoundi ng, which m ght be considered an ol d-fashi oned pharmacy
in which the pharmaci st takes nedications and makes them into
products patients can use. Another type of pharnmacist would be
the 1V hone-infusion pharmacy, which is a pharmacy that prepares
IVs for hone use. Finally, standard retail pharmacies would
i ncl ude i ndependent pharmaci es and chai n phar nmaci es.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER answered that a Native health clinic or
big city hospital would not fall wunder simlarly situated
phar maci es.

MR. CHRI STENSEN responded that pharnmacies of that nature would
be outside the ones he nentioned and would be considered in
their own category of simlarly-situated pharnacies.

4:32:02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER reiterated the types of pharnmacies would
i ncl ude conpoundi ng, |1V home infusion, and retail pharnaci es.

MR. CHRI STENSEN offered that additionally it could include sone
clinics, but he thought hospital pharnacies would not likely be
i ncl uded since they woul d be separate.

4:32:26 PM

CHAIR COLSON asked how doctors that repackage would be affected
by the bill.

MR. CHRI STENSEN surm sed that if these doctors bill third-party
i nsurance they could theoretically be considered a class and
could al so be audited.

4:32:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER noti ced t he | anguage nmenti ons
under paynent s. He related a scenario in which an audit is
conducted that discloses underpaynents. He recalled the bill
l[imts the disclosure of this information to the PBM He
assunmed that a doctor or patient who has overpaid is not
notified. Thus patients are not protected, but rather the

audits are conducted to ensure that the pharmacies are
perform ng due diligence to the PBM

MR. CHRI STENSEN agr eed.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 15- February 27, 2012



4:34:17 PM

MATTHEW DI LORETO, Director, State Governnent Affairs, National
Community Pharmaci sts Association (NCPA), on behalf of the
Nat i onal Community Pharmaci sts Association (NCPA), thanked
menbers for conducting this hearing. He stated that NCPA
strongly supports HB 259. He offered to read his testinony, and
read [original punctuation provided]:

This legislation would provide sone fair and commobn sense
protections for pharnmacies against what are currently

abusive audit practices by the CBMs. Let nme first be
cl ear. This legislation does not prevent audits from
occurring for their intended purpose of preventing fraud

waste, and abuse, in fact, [subsection] (b) of this

| egislation specifically states standards wthin HB 259 do
not apply when pertaining to crimnal investigation or an
i nvestigation by a governnment agency. On a side note, |
just want to let you know that's fairly common | anguage,
not word for word, but in other states as well.

NCPA's menbers understand that audits nust occur to catch
fraud and abuse within the system However, current PBM
audits of a pharnmacy are in many cases sinply being used as
a lucrative revenue source. NCPA represents Anmerica's
i ndependent conmunity pharmacists, including the owners of
nore than 23,000 comunity pharmacies, franchises and

chai ns. Together, they enploy over 300,000 full-tine
enpl oyees and dispense nearly half of the nation's retail
prescription nedicine. In Al aska alone there are over 39
community pharmacies which enploy a projected 413
resi dents. The average independent comunity pharmacy
generates $4 nillion in annual revenue and enploys 10.6
full -time individuals. Al aska's independent conmunity
pharmaci es generate $157 million in annual revenue. Al so
those comunity pharmacies support additional revenue to
other state businesses in the anmount of $141 mnmllion

annually and support additional full-time enploynment to
ot her busi nesses equal to 155 enpl oyees.

4:36:45 PM

VR DI LORETO continued to read his statenent, as foll ows
[original punctuation provided]:

NCPA has long chanpioned the need for greater
oversi ght of pharmacy benefit managers (PBMs) and many

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -16- February 27, 2012



of their questionable business practices due to the
probl enms our nenbers and their patients continue to
face. One of the largest problens that NCPA
phar maci st nenber s face in t oday' s phar macy
mar ket pl ace is the issue of abuse of audit practices.
This 1issue occurs nationwide and nany states are
taking steps to protect their pharmacists and snall
busi ness owners. Today about 15 states have
i npl enented sone |evel of audit protection. Anot her
side note I'd like to make - about 23 states al so have
some | evel of PBM regulation or t ranspar ency
| egi sl ation. | heard that being discussed earlier.
It is not uncommon for these audits to penalize an
i ndependent pharmacy tens of thousands or even - and
this is not an exaggeration - hundreds of thousands of
dollars for nothing nmore than a clerical or
adm ni strative m shap, many of which are not the fault
of a pharmacy. Let ne be clear: the so called errors
|'m referring to are instances in which the correct
medi ci ne was dispensed to the correct person and a
correct fee was charged to the patient and the plan.
Let nme provide you with a recent exanple of a quote
unquote mnor audit that an NCPA nenber went through

This nenber was penalized $14,000 for not wusing a
physi cian nunber in their conputer system The catch
was that in this case it was a certified nurse
practitioner (CRNT) that wote the order so there was
no physician nunber to log in the system The
prescri ber was not a physician. The pharnmaci st took
nmeasures to ensure he was properly conpliant and even
contacted the insurance conpany to indicate that this
was not a problem and he should just use the CRNP
i cense nunber and he did this. In addition, he also
attached a copy of the CRNP's actual license to the
file prescription so it was clear what he was doing

He then |logged the phone call to further protect
hi nsel f. Even so, when he was audited, the PBM
demanded $14,000 back for this prescription. After
all the steps the pharmacist took to ensure he was
acting properly he ultimately settled this issue for
$12,000. The pharmaci st was doi ng exactly what he was
told to do by the insurance conpany and even took
additional steps to nmke sure everything was properly
docunented. Even so, this pharmacist's small business
t ook a $12, 000 | oss.

4:39: 01 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -17- February 27, 2012



VR. DI LORETO continued to read his statenent, as foll ows
[original punctuation provided]:

These stories occur on a regular basis. Simlar
stories have resulted in pharmacists being fined
$250,000 or nore and | can vouch for that specifically
- previous to ny current position I was the director
of governnent relations in Pennsylvania and the
$250,000 story actually happened to one of our
menbers.

Rat her than legitimately using the audit practice to
guard and protect against fraud, nmany PBMs now view
the process as a possible revenue stream for the
conpany. In fact, many auditors are incentivized by
receiving paynent based on the percentage of noney
they've reclained. PBMs now go well beyond the intent
of an audit, to catch fraud and abuse, and instead
focus on typographical or admnistrative errors for

smal|l | oopholes in the rules and regulations such as
the basis to recoup noney from pharnacy. In many
cases, if a PBM auditor identifies an admnistrative
error, he will "take back"” 100 percent of the val ue of
that prescription and every single refill that came
with it - a severe financial penalty that is out of

proportion to the gravity of the offense.
4:40: 06 PM
MR. DI LORETO continued to read his statenent, as foll ows:

Anot her egregious practice many PBMs enploy in order
to "ensure" that discrepancies will be found is to
establish recordkeeping requirenments well in excess of
what is required under the state or federal l|aw or
ot her PBMs. Pharnmacies typically maintain contracts
with nultiple PBM. The result is a nyriad of
conflicting docunentation requirenments that can nake
operating a busy pharmacy and providing patients' care
an even greater chall enge.

NCPA is confident that once nenbers review HB 259,
they will see the neasure spelled out are reasonable
standards to ensure that abuses do not occur. In
ci rcunstances when fraud or legitinate errors occur,
i ndependent pharnmaci sts understand steps nust be taken

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- February 27, 2012



to correct these errors and recoup a reasonabl e sum of

noney. As business owners, independent pharnmacists
realize there are individuals in every profession that
may try to work the system In those cases we fully
support the recoupnent of noney. These instances are
not what are being referred to today. In concl usion

NCPA urges your support of HB 259, |l|egislation that
wil | provide pharmacies an understandably needed
degree of protection against the overaggressive and
far reaching PBM audit practices. We pharnaci sts

understand that in business there nust be audits to
identify those instances where true fraud occurs.
However, these audits should not be utilized to only
i ncrease PBMs' profit margins.

4:41. 47 PM
TOM HODEL, Pharmacist, Soldotna Professional Pharmacy, stated

that he has owned Sol dotna Professional Pharmacy for 28 years
He provided an overview of a recent audit that his pharmacy is

still currently involved in attenpting to resolve. He explained
that he has had several audits over the years with little
adj ustment in paynents. However, in the spring of 2011, his

pharmacy was notified by an audit firm that they would be
performng a desk audit on over 100 prescriptions issued in
2008. He explained that he copied the prescriptions and
signatures for each of them which took a great deal of tine
since sonme of the records were three years old. He mailed the
information tinmely. Several nonths l|ater he was advised the
audit firm had scheduled an on-site audit for June. On the
schedul ed date two staff nenbers arrived and as the pharmaci st
he spent the day pulling records. He pointed out that these two
auditors were from out of state. He remarked he was astoni shed
on the lack of know edge and term nol ogy concerning the practice
of pharmacy these auditors possessed.

DR HODEL stated that a few weeks later he received a
prelimnary report. He stated that out of 100 prescriptions for
over $100,000 in clains reviewed, the auditors had an issue with
four prescriptions totaling less than $90 in claims. He said he
was satisfied with this small anount even though he believed
three of the four clains were absurd. He acknow edged one claim
was a result of the pharmacy's error in the anount of $40. He
subsequently read the back page of the report and discovered
that the $85 error had becone a total of $7,300. He expl ai ned
the firm used a term called a one-sided confidence interval
formula to extrapolate the actual error total to a ridiculous

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- February 27, 2012



sum He related he sent in docunentation on three of the errors
that he did not think were appropriate, but the docunentation
was rejected. A few weeks ago he received a letter requesting
he remt $7,300 in overpaynments by March 8. He has since hired
an attorney and is in the process of appealing this decision.
He said it would likely cost himnore in the long run to appea
the decision, but he feels the actions are blatantly unfair. He
offered his belief that extrapolation nethods should only be
used in instances of patterns of abuse. He enphasi zed that his
pharmmacy has not had that happen. He stressed that pharnmacists
try every day to take care of their patients anongst an ever
changi ng and conplicated billing system He agreed that audits
are an inportant nethod to nonitor pharmacies and ensuring safe
practice; however, these audits also need to be standardi zed and
performed in a way that does not interfere with the health care
services being provided by pharnacists. He thanked nenbers for
their support of HB 259.

4:45: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER recalled the pharnmacist has experienced
several audits. He asked himto speculate on how w despread the
problens are in terms of abusive auditing practices.

DR. HODEL answered that that desk audits regularly occur,
typically for 3-5 prescriptions. He offered that onsite audits
of his pharmacy are conducted once or twice a year from Blue
Cross or other firm He pointed out that the |ogistics of
traveling to Alaska tend to |linmt the onsite audits.

4:46: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER questioned whether there are any limts
on the nunber of audits that can be conduct ed.

DR. HODEL answer ed no.
4: 46: 24 PM

ERI C DOUGLAS, Director, Governnent Affairs, CVS Caremark, spoke
in opposition to HB 259. He explained that the four sections in
HB 259 cover nunerous audit practices and procedures which are
overly prescriptive and would hinder the CVS Caremark's ability
to conduct audit functions on behalf of their clients. He
provi ded background information, including that CVS Caremark is
not only a large PBM but is also the largest chain pharmacy in
the U S, with about 7,400 CVS pharnmacies in 47 states. He

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- February 27, 2012



of fered that CVS has about 66,000 pharnacies in its network that
contract with an insurer or through the CVS to help manage
prescription benefits for enployees of governnment agencies,
clients. The function CVS serves in terms of conducting an
audit is to ensure that clains being filed are filed properly
and represent valid clains. Wen CVS recoups noneys, the nonies
are not recouped for CVS, but for their clients. He referred to
a section in the bill with respect to not recouping a dispensing
fee. He stated that the dispensing fee is part of overall
paynent . He surm sed that proponents would say the reason they
want to keep the fees is because the pharnmacists have filled the
prescriptions. However if the pharnacists have incorrectly
filled prescriptions or the pharmacists cannot provide the
prescription records during an audit, the CVS not only recovers
the cost of the drug, but the fees the pharnmacists were paid to

di spense the drugs. He concluded that this noney does not
belong to CVS or the pharnmacy, but to the client who paid for
the prescription. Thus, provisions in the bill hinder the

ability for PBMs to continue to operate.
4:49:14 PM

MR. DOUGLAS recalled testinony in which a very small error was
coommitted and the entire claim was recouped. He said he
couldn't speak to that specifically, but he could say CVS
Caremark does not recoup or extrapolate nonies for clerical
errors or scriveners errors. CVS Caremark does not take the
practice of reviewng 100 records, discovering 4 mstakes and

extrapolating sums that sone "bad actors"” or PBMs may do. He
said that nost often the groups engaged in that type activity
woul d be "rack auditors” and not PBMs. The rack auditor only
audi t s. These businesses are subcontracted out typically
because an insurer or PBM cannot conduct the audit so they hire
soneone to wrk on a contingency fee basis. These

subcontractors have a vested interest in maximzing the nunber
of errors they find since they are paid to discover them He
assured nenbers that CVC Caremark does not enploy those types of
practices.

4:51: 09 PM

MR. DOUGLAS offered his belief that the specific problemwth HB
259 is that it harnms the valid nethodologically used to keep
fraud, m suse, abuse, and overpaynents out of the system that
hel ps curb costs and reinburse incorrect paynents. The bill
focuses on the situations and problens rack auditors use that
need to be addressed, but in the process of doing so adversely

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- February 27, 2012



affect the PBMs who use good practices. He enphasi zed that as
the reason that CVC opposes the bill. He acknow edged that 15
states with audit |aws, including other types of PBM | aws. He
reiterated that 15 states have audit laws that vary; however,
many are simlar to this bill. He clarified that the nodel
| anguage is an association's nodel |anguage, but it is not node
| anguage based on what the majority of states that have passed
audit laws considered as nodel |anguage. He stated that
typically when a bill of this nature has been introduced, based
on nodel legislation, that no one has approached CVS Caremark to
di scuss the issue.

4:52:56 PM

MR. DOUGLAS enphasized that CVS Caremark firmly objects to the
idea that all PBMs are bad. He recalled the point that PBMs are
not regul ated; however, that is not true. He agreed it is fair
to say that PBMs are not regulated by a state agency in Al aska,
but PBMs nust conply with nunerous existing regulations and

| aws. The PBMs are licensed as third-party admnistrators,
preferred provi der or gani zati ons, utilization revi ew
organi zations, resident and nonresident pharmacies, including
mail order facilities. He pointed out that if CVS is nmiling

prescriptions to Alaska, these pharmacists are registered with
the Board of Pharmacy, and the CVS pharnmacist is licensed in the
state. Thus to state that PBMs are a wholly unregul ated
i ndustry is not true. He stated that his witten testinony has
been submtted for inclusion in the record. He thanked nenbers
for the opportunity to testify.

4:54:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked how long CVS Caremark has been in
busi ness.

MR. DOUGLAS answered that CVS Pharmacy and Caremark nerged in
2007.

4:54: 42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER questi oned whether audit collections have
gone up, down, or stayed the sane.

MR. DOUGLAS answered that to the extent that CVS Caremark has
growmn that he would assunme recoupnents from audits have grown
since they have nore clients; however, CVS Caremark is not
auditing nore often or recouping nore per audit; however if

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- February 27, 2012



t heir business expands by 25 percent, they will |ikely have nore
recruitnment.

4:55:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLER questi oned whether the 25 percent increase
in business would be the result of profit margin or dispensing
nor e pharnmaceuti cal s.

MR. DOUGLAS related his coments were hypothetical and he did
not mean that CVS Caremark has increased its business by 25
per cent . However, if they did it would be reflected to the
extent that nore pharnacies are opened would dispense nore
prescriptions, or if the PBM gains additional clients it would
result in nore business. He offered his belief that the nunber
of businesses using PBMs is fairly finite and the business is a
pretty conpetitive business. He acknow edged that there are
three major PBMs; however, 50 PBMs exist that are very
conpetitive on a regional basis throughout the country.

4:57:15 PM

GERALD BROWW, | ndependent Phar naci st Prescription Center
Phar macy, spoke in support of HB 259. He enphasi zed currently
t he pharmaci sts have no protection against PBMs and PBM audits.
He stated that the fines can be quite onerous and the audits are
conducted at any tine for any tinefrane. He pointed out that
pharmaci sts are so inundated with work it is difficult to find
time available to respond to audits. He remarked that the
audits can be punitive. He offered his belief that this bill is
a great start. He further enphasized the inportance of
obtaining nore transparency in ternms of how PBMs perform He
rel ated his understanding that PBMs receive a |lot of noney from
drug conpanies in the form of rebates, yet pharnmacists
di spensing fees are $2. He pointed out that works for drugs
whose value is $2-%$20. He related a scenario in which the
pharmacy paid $7,500, with a dispensing fee $2, but the audit
indicated it would renove the $7,500 for punitive action. He
wondered how a pharmacy could exist or how a pharmacist could
justify a bank |loan to becone a pharnacy. He acknow edged t hat
this bill doesn't answer all the questions, but it prevents
phar maci sts from under goi ng undue audits and penalties.

5:00:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVWPSON asked how nmany audits he has had over
past 5 years.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 23- February 27, 2012



DR. BROM estimated that he has four to six desk audits each
gquarter, but has not had any onsite audits during the past three
to four years. He pointed out that the logistics typically
affect the nunber of onsite audits. He al so noted his pharmacy
has clean records and works to ensure they do not set thenselves
up for audits, which is another reason for so few audits.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVPSON asked if the pharmacy has 20 desk audits
a year, whether the auditor would audit 25 prescriptions each
time or if the auditors limt the audit to five different
prescriptions.

DR. BROW answered the desk audits typically consist of 5-20
prescriptions per audit and the audits typically cone from
various third parties looking for any error. He explained staff
must pull the prescription, photocopy the original, remt to the
auditor to justify the prescription was filled and that the
patient signed for the prescription. He reiterated the pharnmacy
has about 4-6 desk audits per quarter consisting of 10-15
prescriptions per request.

5:03: 14 PM
REPRESENTATI VE THOMPSON suggested that it sounds Ilike the
auditors are on a fishing expedition. He asked for the nunber

of errors the desk audits have di scovered.

DR. BROWN answer ed none.

5:03: 32 PM

MARGARET SODEN, Past President, Al aska Pharnmacists Association
(APA), stated she is a retired conmmunity pharnacist. She
t hanked nenbers for hearing their concerns. She urged nenbers

to support HB 259. She explained when she started out as a
pharmaci st 45 years ago nobst prescriptions were to patients who

paid for the prescriptions, but now the majority of
prescriptions are billed to third parties and along with that
third-party billing cones the audit of the pharmacy records.
This bill is intended to bring standardization and fairness into
the audit process. She explained that the provisions of this
bill wll allow pharmacists' tinme to conmply with an audit

request and cause less disruption to patient care pharnmacists
provi de. She highlighted that the main reason pharmacists are
in business is to fill prescriptions for patients, ensure they
get the right drugs, the right dose, for the right period of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 24- February 27, 2012



time. She concluded that audits then to take away pharmacists’
time fromtheir patients and from patients getting the best care
phar maci sts can provide for them

[ HB 259 was hel d over. ]

5:05: 37 PM

ADJ OURNMENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:05 p.m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -25- February 27, 2012



